CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
MARCH 19, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

. CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue

Il ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY19, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT'S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue

V. SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson

VL. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Customer Satisfaction Survey Results: Mr. Aaron Heckele, ETC Institute
2. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff

VIl. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON

Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue

Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux (no meeting held)
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman

Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

o e



VIIl.  ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of renewal of automated fuel dispensing services contract
with Mansfield Oil (formerly FuelTrac)

2. Consideration of award of contract for construction services for Cortana
Transit Center construction project
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

Ny




CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES
. CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Jim Brandt
Mr. Brandt called the meeting to order.
. ROLL CALL

Present at the meeting were members Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Breaux,
Cohran, Lambert, and O’'Gorman and Mss. Green and Perkins. Ms. Pierre
was absent. Also present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown,
CAQO; other CATS staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of
the public.

Ml NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Ms. Green shared that she chaired the nominating committee and served
with Messrs. Brandt and O’Gorman. The nominating committee proposed
the following slate of officers:

President — Mark Bellue
Vice-President — Erika Green
Treasurer — Kahli Cohran
Secretary — Antoinette Pierre

There were no other nominations from the floor.



V.

VI

VIL.

Mr. Lambert moved to elect the slate of officers as proposed and Ms. Green
seconded the motion. Mr. Brandt invited public comment and there was
none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Mr. Brandt congratulated the newly elected officers and passed the gavel to
Mr. Bellue.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 MEETING
anuary 15, 2019, meeting

wvited public comment
'ously with no abstentions.

Mr. Brandt moved to approve the minutes of t
and Ms. Green seconded the motion. Mr. Be
and there was none. The motion passed unz

PRESIDENT'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

rovided a revie

Mr. Bellue welcomed the public and:

f the public
comment process.

SAFETY MOMENT

Ms. Simpson shared a saf; nt centefed on passenger safety.

vizi-le and Executive Staff

there were'discrepancies in the reporting.

Mr. Devilie reported that CATS has rebid the construction project for
the East (Cortana) Transit Center and hopes to have a
recommendation at the March board meeting.

CATS has been approached to look into the potential of
implementing the Boston paratransit/transportation network
companies on-demand template that has been successful there.




CATS will be represented at the SWTA annual conference the first
week of March in El Paso, Texas.

Mr. Deville shared that CATS, the Redevelopment Authority, and the
City-Parish participated in a series of workshops on January 28" and
29" to discuss the proposed Plank-Nicholson BRT Corridor. The
CATS BRT project team is collaborating with the CATS finance staff
to determine the budget effects on operating and maintenance costs
resulting from the planned addition of the corridor.

Mr. Deville let the board know that CA
Baker Mayor and CRPC to plan a bu
ride location in Baker. Project fundi

has been working with the
over facility and a park-and-
s.been identified by CRPC

revenue was $264,8:
total operating reve

viil.

Mr. Cohran‘noted the committee did not meet but that he was waiting
on word from the auditors.

4. Planning: Mr. Kevin O’'Gorman

Mr. O’Gorman noted the committee did not meet but would be
meeting in the near future to discuss the two year capital budget.

5. Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins




Ms. Perkins referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
February 14" meeting in their packets. She noted that the paratransit
and communications departments recently implemented a newsletter
tailored to the CATS On Demand customers.

Mr. Bryan Basford of MV Transportation noted that there were 8,249
scheduled trips; of those, 658 were cancellations and 310 were no-
shows for a total of 7,591 completed trips. There were five
complaints for the month and the on-time.percentage was 94.7%.
There were five road calls for the month

IX. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of award of le
Firm, A.P.L.C.

Mr. Brown shared that this wa
take effect upon expiration of

Xl. ADJOURNME

Mr. Cohran moved to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Pierre seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.




6T0C ‘6T Y21eN

M._._uzn_._.m..mz_

91NNsu| D13 Ol—l m

Ag

WialsAS 1isued) eaudy |eyde)

0] pojuasaid

£daing paeoquQ [jeq 8107



"9IUIPIUOD JO [9NI] %S6 BY1 1B %E
-/+ 1sed| 1 Jo uoisidad e aney S}NSaJ [|IDAQ =

P9199]|02 000‘Z 43N0 =

sA9AINS 3|geasn 0OZ‘T 199]|02 0} SeM |eOL) =

8T0¢C 412qWaNON
ui uieSe pue 810z Ae|Al Ul PaINPUO) «

513N ASojopoyian



S1VvD 3ulpiy s| oym

ASAINng Japry oyl wouy sSuipul4



Juapuadap jisuesy
9Je siapli Jo (%£) siapli 4n0} JO 1IN0 334y} AjdeaN

0:0£QuhmEm e 9Aey Siapii JO %G8

JedA auo ueyy ssoj
%01 ‘sieal g ueyl aiow Sy pash dAeY SIBPU JO %62

6€ - 6T J0 a3k 9yl usamiaq a4e si12pu Jo (%8S) ey 4an0

(000‘g2S 19pun ase Ajuofew ayl) 000‘0SS>
Japun awodul pjoyasnoy jenuue aney Siapi Jo %/

"uoneliodsuesj
10} S1YD uo AjaJ (paAanins siapid) siapua Jo Apuolew ayy

3|1j0.1d J3p1Y



S1VD Suisn aJe si19ply MOH

Aaning Japly ayy wouj sduipul



uoileuIlsap Jivy}
0} 198 03 sawii} SS3| 40 T Sulliajsuel) aJe SIdaPLI JO %06

3upjjem Aq 1isuesy 3uissadde aJe SIdpll JO %06 49N0
")}o9m Jad sAep aiow 10 G S1yD Suisn die SIdPLI JO %G9
‘Po1e[aJ }aom 40 }iom ale sdial 3sow 4oy asodind Asewiad

‘'sooe|d 2dA}

|eUOSI9d/|e1d0S £# pue MJIOM Z# ‘OWOH T# wod} Suiwod
10 3ul03 aJe (paAanins siapu) siapu jo Ajiolew ayy

sjieyag poaie|ay duij uoijeuilsag pue uisSuQ




S1VD Yyum
pPalysnes a1y SIapIy 1SOIA

Aaning Japiy ayl wouj ssuipul



%001

‘lled2A0
SL1VD YUM psljsiies
9Je siapli jo Ajluofew
9yl Iing Ajaybijs paddoup
Sey uoiljoejsnes |[eJdAQ

BLGT Ao

(8T0Z 3unids wouy sjulod §-)
/9 S! 8T0T |1e4 10§ Suney uonoejsipes ueap

pausnes o (G) @ PRUSOES (F) @ (ennay (£) @ Joog Aap g paysaessiq (7/1) @

S1VD YIIM UOIIBJSIIES ||BISAD



SWwia}lf 3liNnias paipny 1saybiH



L -l

%00L

SAQAINS ||e4 pue
bulids syl yiog uo woyj
9JIAIRS paley 1saybiH

(8102 Sunds wouy syulod T-)
Q/ S! 810 |led 10} Suney uonoejsiies uesy

paysnes A3 () @ PRysues (F) @ 1=anaN (£) @ sood L3 19 pausaessig (/L) @

SI9ALIQ SNg S1VD YMM uoIilde)siies



bl

S1vD bulpty
3IYM 241n23S pub 3JpS [93] SIIPIY



cl

%00t

Swa}| paiey

1SIMO1 Y3 buowe s
Alojes ‘salpuaby 1sop 104

(8T0Z Sunds wouy syurod £-)
[/ S! 8T0T lled 10§ Sunzey uoiydejsijes ueajp|

pausues Lap () @ pausnes ()@ 1eunay (g) @ Joog Usp g paysinessiq (7/ L)@

S1YD 3ulply ajiym A11andag pue Alajes



€l

%001

=08 %00

R4 8L0ZON

(8107 Bunds wouy syutod £-)
/./ S! 810 lled 40} Suney uonoejsines ues|p

paysies Aap () @ PRUSHES (V) @ 122neN (£) @ Jood Aisp 79 pausaessiq (Z/1) @

sng Jo uoljeladQ ajes



siopiy 01 Jueliodwi|
1SOIN @4e 1y} Swid)| 921AIDS

Aaning Japiy ayl wou} suipuid



gl

9JIAIDS JBWOISND) - €#

3ldd DJeq - Z#

QWI] uQ bulALllyY sesng - |#
8102 bulids Joj € doj

%SC
%6’ L

Sy woiy uenewuoyw bumab jo asey

ssauljueap doig sng

£
=]
o

- £
«
(=]

9dldd e - S#

M3N - 9beIDA0D) 9IN0OY - Z#

W] uQ BuUIAlLIY sBsShg - | #
810¢ Iled 1o} € do]

gmﬂfm Apwn sumidwod 1o swiaauod Aw Bulajosay
HEIS J31U3T ||BD JO AjIgeieay
%OT =
“MMNNNI sdew 31noJ o fAoeindoy

snqg sy3 uo A335e5

#
™
0

%87

%G1

umcp Bunjeaig jou sasng

%ol

£
ii
wn

SI3AUD JC SE3UIpUaLL

#
@
&

s3npayas 3nod o Azeinaoy

S2AIBG J2WOLEND

S2U4 2184

2w uc Bulae sasng

2L0Z "N @ 307 BN @

S19pIy 031 swa}| IAIBS € doj



sanuiond do|

SISA|euy

—9duen0dwyj




Ll

9JIAI9S BUlURAD JO All|Iqe|leAY {# =
9JuewJojiad snq awnN-uQ €# =
9JIAJI9S Sng JO Adusnbol{ Z# =
9JIAI9S PuUdd2aM JO AlljIqe|leAY |# =

8 L0¢Z bulids -siaply 01 buipioddy sailliolld ¢ do|

%Z Aq paseaidul

SLvD Aq papinoid
9JINIDS JoUIOo)}SN) UO
a2oe/d siapry asueriodull

9DIAI9S BUIUBAD JO All|Iqe|IRAY b# =
aduew.ojtad sng awnN-uQ $# =

— M3IN —°JIAIRS JIBWO0ISND) Z# =
9JIAISS puad@aM JO Alljiqe|leAy |# =

8102 T1V4 -Siapry 01 buipioddy sanuond ¢ doj

sisAjeuy S



~
-

Questions




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

- EXECUTIVESTAFF

Bill Deville
Chief Execttive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
March 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams

Operations now has 131 active Operators
See attached Performance Measures

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

CATS has rebid the construction project for the East (Cortana) Transit Center
and will have a recommendation for the March board meeting.

After the BYD electric bus inspection at their facility in southern California last
week, staff informed us that all three buses are in the road test/punch list
mode. All three electric buses are scheduled to arrive ahead of the planned
revenue service startup for CATS Plank Road BRT route. Once the buses arrive
and are ready for revenue service, they will be utilized on the Plank Road
route in peak hours until the Plank Road BRT route is active.

The CATS SIP implementation on February 24" was successful, with some
minor issues as expected. The free rides were appreciated by the customers.
Operations, Scheduling, and Planning are closely monitoring the SIP startup;
as usual in Transit, route changes result in punch list type issues that will be
addressed. Some of the issues that have arisen are some operators saying
certain route schedules don’t allow enough layover time for restroom break,
and some customers, in spite of the valiant effort by Communications and
Operations getting the word out, needing to be helped with route changes.
Your CEO was a guest of the Senator Regina Barrow radio program; she asked
to have CATS come and talk about the SIP for her audience.

The agency has hired a new Human Resources Manager, Jim Fight, and he
comes to us with a background of more than twenty years in HR and more
than ten years in transit.

An administrative reorganization took place effective March 1%, Some of the
highlights include naming Dwana Williams the Chief Operating Officer, and
Garrick Rose the Director of Planning and Program Development.

PLANNING AND GRANTS: Garrick Rose

Planning and Operations is reviewing the draft 5-year fleet plan produced by
former COO, Rod Goldman.

On Saturday, March 9, 2019, Planning staff participated in the “Walk the
Plank” event sponsored East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority. The
community walk and ride tour was held to encourage residents and business
owners who live along Plank Road to tell officials what the future should look
for the road.

Grants staff is continuing to prepare information requested by the FTA for the
Triennial Review Process.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

- EXECUTIVE STAFF

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

e Planning and Finance has assisted P&N with requested information regarding
the FTA federal award process and oversight.

FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Bill Deville
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:
e CATS is anticipating FTA's approval of the 2018 formula funding.
e Legal counsel for CATS is working with LSU officials to complete certain
requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.
East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:
e The bid documents have been re-advertised and a pre-bid conference was
held February 13",
e Three construction bids were received on March 6" and the Procurement
Department has vetted the bids. The lowest bidder is in compliance with the
ITB.
e Arecommendation to award the contract will be presented as an action item
for the Board’s consideration.
Downtown Transit Center:
e Recent discussions with DOTD officials and DPW officials continue in an effort
to identify suitable downtown sites to accommodate the transit center’s
operations.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank-Nicholson BRT:

e A preliminary assessment of the BRT stations has been completed by SIB. The
assessment focused on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site
evaluations and development of conceptual design plans. The assessment has
confirmed the suitability and acceptability of the BRT station locations and
allows the design phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed
unacceptahle because of traffic issues, ADA compliance, space limitations, etc.
have been replaced with alternative sites.

e CATS and HNTB met with City-Parish DPW and DOTD officials to explore the
challenges associated with the Plank Road rights-of-way. Narrow rights-of-
way and access management, as well as the transfer of Plank Road from DOTD
to DPW were some of the issues discussed.

e Phase Two of the Plank-Nicholson BRT Corridor project is projected to start as
early as 2022 if funded by the FTA. In order to qualify for FTA Small Starts
grant funding, HNTB has 15 minute headways on the ten miles of station
stops; this BRT service scenario would potentially bring in the highest
ridership estimates, which is crucial to getting FTA grant approval competing
against other cities for funding. This proposed scenario has BRT service along
the Plank sector with ten station locations for review. In Phase One, the CATS
Plank Road BR has planned three larger station stops identified by CATS
Operations and Planning departments. Additionally, the HNTB plan also
includes operating costs projects for review by CATS.



2250 Florida Boulevard Cl I I S

Baton Rﬂuge LA 70802 CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE: 225.389.8920

e CATS is evaluating these all options, and the challenges that come with them,
and is finalizing the Phase One plans to include station locations, designs, and
service locations.

City of Baker:

Park-and-Ride project

e The Baker Transit Center, a bus layover facility and a park-and-ride, is a
collaborative project among CATS, the City of Baker, and CRPC.

e Project funding has been identified by CRPC with local match to be provided
by CATS and the City of Baker.

e CRPC solicited a planning service contract to begin a site planning and design
concepts study.

e CRPC will fund the initial phase of the project of the project.

Service Planning: Bill Deville

o The Service Improvement Plan began February 24",

e  While staff is closely monitoring the SIP implementation, as explained
repeatedly and as much as possible at public meetings and on the website,
CATS can and will make minor adjustments in real time depending on
feedback from riders, customers, and stakeholders; and as noted, for bigger
service and route adjustments, CATS is able to make those three times a year,
and the next opportunity is June.

brcats.com




€9T°12¢

ESY'TTT

6T0C H

LT9'E0T

€20'91¢

Zr9'sve

99€'81C

T62'LTL

L96'STT

¥or'11T

€99°€2¢

TrZ'81e

vCE1ET

160°6TC

75591¢

810C =

23Q

“AON

RO

das

‘Bny

Apng

aunr

Aeln

1dy

“IBIA

‘qed

‘uef

diysiapry

000°0S

000°00T

000°0ST

000'002

000°05¢

000‘00€

(3154 LISkt 3K el

0.5




sdojs
sng wajsAs D103 3yl Jo % €T JUIsaidal yoiym sjuiodawiy pajnpayas 3o painsnawl sl adupuiofiad awi-uQ 310N
@JjuBwWIOlSd BWl]-uQ %08 18981e]

%92°L9

%1L6°L9

610Z W

. %0'99

%899

%€"99

%6°L9

%C°L9

%0769

%89

%8°L9

%CL9

%9899

%8€799

%1IL99

8T0¢ m

2ag

*AON

e

1des

‘Sny

Aing

aunr.

Ae

judy

yaiep

‘go4

‘uer

9JUBWIONDd dWI]-UQ

%000

%00°0T
%0002
%00°0€
%0070
%0005
%00°09
%00°0L
%0008
%0006

%00°00T

\UZIGAS 1SNt 635 LD

0.5




GE'00Z| 9°€LT 'sduy sng pajjaoue) 6107 =
0°'S8¢ | '6€E | 0'9CE |0'9TC | OP9Z | OV6T | 0°E6T | O'TOZ | O'E6 99 €'0vZ | S'62¢ |sduy sng pajj@oue) 8I07 B
aunr | Aen | judy |yoseiw | "gey4 | cuer

suonejjaue) diij sng

0
0s
001
0st
00¢
0s¢
00€
0S€

08)74

0S¥ (UBISAS 1SNHHL H3H L

0.5




s3uipieog 000°00T Jod sjuiejdwio) Jawolsn) Oz uewyy ssaf 198ie],

[ [T€ | 99t |6T0Zm
LTy | €Lz €8 | 99¢ | 80 | IvZ | 8LE | TEE 62 | 6ST | L'€T | 6TE |gIoZm
28Qg *AON PO | des Sny Ajnr aunf Aein udy | yosew ‘qe4 uer

sSuipieog 00000T 42d siuiejdwo) Jowoisn)

ot
ST
0¢
T4
o€
S€
or

St

USESHS LS £ L

o8]




S9N 000'00T 43d SIUSPINVY 3|qeIuanald §°Z 198Ie],

S9|IINl 000°00T 42d S1U3PIIY 3|qeluanaid

8's 1 610 =
61 £¢ €1 81 9T LT LT 91 L0 €T 11 S'E 810Z W
*22Q *AON ‘1O -1dag “Sny Apng aunf Aepy judy youiel ‘qod ‘uer
- c
T
4
€
14
S
9
L
WRISAG LNl B ML

oLt




T6LT | TTH'E |SlI1eD peoy 134 SN UBSIN 6T07 =
8LEV | TYE'S | TL6'S | T8y | €€5'S | 829'0 | 894’9 | 6522 | T¥I'9 | STT'6 [ 8IVOT | TIS'Y |s||eD peoy 1ag s3I UeaN 107 |
23 ‘AON 190 -1dag ‘Bny Ainr aunf Aeln jady IRN ‘ge4 uer

s||eD peoy usamiag s3Il UBBIA]

000C

000y

0009

000°8

000°0T

000°CT

WELEAS LISNGEL W3t T lidbd

51d3




(615 6 6FL 1S LLITDSOTS 6I1s) IFE€TE0'RS EFO°LYT'RS I0L801S
968 TIT€TS TEL'BSE'IS STEILSFPTS 96S°TIT'ETS 9S1'6F0 8% GES'ER86'6S EREFEGC LS
965" LEF' TS T91°L98% 8SL'POE'SH 965" LEY' TS 688°65H°TS 689°6Z8'TS 008'69€$
€0£'62TH (90Z°101%) 660°8T1% €0E°6TTS 869°1E% L9LT0SS 601°61%

0% €TESOTH £TE°56TS 0% 0% 0% 0%

0% TLY'8E9% TLY'8E98 0% TLF'8E9% TLE'8E9% 0$

0% 180°9¢+$ 180°9% 1S 0$ 0% 0% 0%

000°06$ (L99°8%) £€C18% 000°06% (00s°L$) 0% 00S°LS

16T811°tS (1+8°20t$) 0STCILES 16T°811t$ 6STLOL 1S 0SEOrI'TS 161°CES

000*'SLL'BIS 0LS' 165 0L599T°61S 000°SLL'BTS L9T'68S5'SS 0S8'€SI'LS €8SFIS' 1S

000°§T691§ €S6°SILS €C6°0F9LLS 000°ST6H 91 LYLOLT'9S FRI°LRY'LS LIFOIF1S

000°055$ 005°LELS 00£°L89% 000°0S5$ (££8°SF$) 0% CER'CHE

000°00€°1$ (£88°19¢%) L11°8€6% 000°00€° 1S (£99°1$9%) (geeeesy) €EE'S01%
(y19AfeM] aup)

(S19°TIT€TS) LTL'06ES (1srizses) (€19°Z1T°€TS) (€18°91%) (96F°918°18) (z89's78°15)
816°SL8'TS 960" 1+5 FPIOLIG'TS 816'SLETS (S18°c9) SERSETS 099'6£TS
S08°ESS £F60018 STLYSLS C08°ECY (1L1F%) C1Es P8F TS
000°05$ 9LTOLS 9LT6TIS 000°05% (6¥6°1%) L1TTS LO1FS
0007005 Syl i £ CET 1298 00070059 CER'ITH 00S°€9§ L99°1¥%
000°011§ (0<8°18%) 0S1°8Z$ 000°011% (L91°6%) 0% L91°6S
CLITIHS (sTH'gs1$) 889°¢czs CITTIPS (6gc$) FO0FES creres
000°0SL'1$ (z80°0T$) LI66TL 1S 000°0SL'1S (zeo'oly) TISSEIS CE8CHIG
££5"880°9TS (Z€9°6FES) H91°8E+ 9% €€S'880°9T$ 100°€1S IF€°7S0°TS re's90°Ts
0% (FTLC1$) PTLCLS 0% 0% 0% 0%
T60°vCLS (bEL'SES) 978°7919% 60°vTLS 676'F$ T6€°5% €018
LPETES8S LPSES8S 0% LPSTEe8s 6C1°1LS 0% 6T 1LS
80L°698% PELFTS PLOFTIS 80L°698% LO1°TTS 69€°05% 9LV TLS
009°05T§ 10L°25% 668°L61S 009°05T$ (LST'€S) Ov1°+Ts £88°0T%
0P1P0ScS PSLF6SS 98€°606°TS OF170S°€S (0¥9°8T%) 759°0T¢% T10°z6T%
000 1++T$ £€0°08€% L96°060°TS 000°1¥+°CS 66%°12$ 8L6°181E L1t°€0TS
606'6TI' 1S (Z1T'815%) 1TI8H9°1§ 606'6T1°1% TSE918 LOS'LLS 6S1°76%
780°€OT 1§ (L1S°18T%) 668 TRL 1S T80°€9F 1§ 0SS ELS £LEROLS £26°1T18
CSHTSH SIS (FIT168°18) 699°CH0 LTS CSPTEF SIS (689°+01%) 169°¢8T 1§ T006LI 1S

junouly “iep [enjoy umm_u:m junouwy “Iep |1enioy ammﬁzm

13bpng |enuuy g0
parotddy 810z

| abed

ajeq 03 Jea

UIuo JUsiing

102 'L Jaqiasaq papus polsd auj Jo4

|en}oy “sA }ebpng BunesadQ jo juswalels

wiaysAg Jisuel] easy [euden

-+ durprg suonwiadoy 1ay

saipisgng Suneaad( (3o,
SIPISANS [BJ3PIY [BIOL
Juiuuel - v1.4
asea] sng VOH - V.1
SISSNE] DL OVIND - VL
WPl MIN/DIVI - V.1.d
uonensuIupy 123{01d - V1.
DUBUDIUIRIA FATUDIA] - V1
saipisqng SuneiadQy [viapay
SAIPISQNS [BAIPI] UON [BIO],
anuaady xe |, Auadoiy
pun,j uoneuodsuel |, ysie
Xe ], [I0N/IMO]
ANUIADY [RIOPA] UON

(seipisqns (2207 ¥ eielS ‘fereps-
paambay Apisang/iey1ioys dunesado

sanuaAdy sunerdQ [glo],
ANUAAIY AJUITY 1210
AWOdU] 1521aU]
ANUIADY SUISIIAAPY
ANUIADY NSUBNRIR]/ VAV
(1wenue)) saie, nsuel] [eoadg
SaIE,] PIR JaFuasse ]

sanuaAdy supesadg

sasmadxyg suneradQ er10],
uoneardag]
S[RIUDY puE $ISBI|
(jende)) ymepy [pa07]
sasuadxz] SNOAUR|[20S1]A]
sannn
sarddng % sjeusep
uonepodsuel | paseyain |
SA01AIDG
Ariqer pue Ajjense)
s)jauag 28ULL] pue 10qe|

sasuadxy) SuneradQ

Wdl 9L-€2'50 6L0</BLIE



CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
MARCH 14, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES

The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, March14, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were members Mark Bellue, Jim Brandt, Kahli
Cohran, Erika Green, and Antoinette Pierre. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell
Brown, Dwana Williams, and members of CATS staff.

V.

Call to order and establishment of quorum
Mr. Bellue welcomed those assembled.
President’s Announcements

Mr. Bellue welcomed the new committee and shared that Mr. Brandt would
be serving in the at-large position on the F&E Committee.

Safety Moment

Ms. Renee Simpson shared a safety moment that centered on effective
practices in bus transit safety.

Executive Report and Financials

Ms. Dwana Williams updated the committee on the performance measures.
She let the members know that there are currently 131 active operators.
She noted that CATS had 221,163 passenger trips in February. There were
5.8 preventable accidents per 100,000 miles. Ms. Williams shared that there
were 200 trips cancelled in February of the approximately 35,000 trips for
the month. The percentage of on-time trips was 67.26%. There were 31.7
complaints per 100,000 miles in February, primarily related to performance



issues and reroutes. Ms. Williams shared that there were 1,792 miles
between road calls for the month.

There was discussion related to the on-time performance metric and the
low percentage rate. It was noted that this number is based on a zero
minutes early to five minutes late window of time and the number for the
same period last year was based on a zero minutes early to ten minutes
late window. Several board members inquired as to the methods being
utilized to increase the performance. Ms. Williams shared that the SIP
would hopefully lead to increased on-time performance.

After the BYD electric bus inspection at the BYD facility, CATS maintenance
staff informed staff that the three electric buses are in the road testing
phase and will begin arriving in Baton Rouge the week of March 19" The
buses will arrive ahead of the planned start of the Plank Road BRT route;
as such, they will be utilized on the Plank Road fixed route in peak hours
until the BRT is in place.

Mr. Deville noted that he was a guest on Senator Regina Barrow’s radio
program to discuss the SIP and the free rides for the first week of that
service.

Mr. Deville let the members know that CATS has hired a new Human
Resources Manager, Jim Fight, who will be in Baton Rouge on March 19"
for pre-employment requirements. Mr. Fight comes to Baton Rouge with
twenty years of human resources experience and more than ten years in
transit human rescurces.

An administrative reorganization took effect March 1%, Some of the
highlights include naming Dwana Williams the Chief Operating Officer and
Garrick Rose the Interim Director of Planning and Program Development.

Mr. Rose noted that Planning and Operations are reviewing the draft five-
year fleet plan.

On March 9", the Planning staff participated in an outreach event with the
Redevelopment Authority dubbed “Walk the Plank” where residents and
business owners were encouraged to share their feedback regarding the
Plank Road revitalization initiative.

In Facilities Planning, Mr. Deville let the board know that CATS is
anticipating FTA’s approval of the 2018 formula funding.

Legal counsel is working with LSU officials to complete the sale of the land
for the North Baton Rouge property.




Mr. Devilie shared that a recommendation to award the construction
contract for the Cortana Transit Center is an item for consideration.

Mr. Deville let the members know that a preliminary assessment of the BRT
stations has been completed by SJB and has confirmed the suitability and
acceptability of the BRT station locations and allows the design phase to
the utility phase.

CATS and HNTB met with City-Parish DPW and DOTD officials to explore
the challenges associated with the Plank Road rights-of-way. Narrow ROW
and access management, as well as the transfer of Plank Read from DOTD
to the City were some of the issues discussed.

The Baker Transit Center, a bus layover facility and park-and-ride, is a
collaborative project among CATS, the City of Baker, and CRPC. Project
funding has been identified by CRPC with local match to be provided by
CATS and the City of Baker. CRPC solicited a planning service contract to
being a site planning and design concepts study.

The Service Implementation Plan began February 24", While staff is closely
monitoring the implementation, CATS can and will make minor adjustments
in real time depending on the feedback from riders and stakeholders; larger
changes will be made in June in conjunction with the next run cut for
operators.

Mr. Deville shared that he had engaged Postlethwaite & Netterville to
conduct an audit of the finances at the agency in addition to their
upcoming annual material audit. The firm has been critical in learning the
deficiencies in the finance department and financials.

The firm has now begun the work of the material audit while continuing to
work on the finances.

Ms. Tiffany Dorsa of Postlethwaite & Netterville shared that her firm has
been working to correct errors in the agency’s financial department and
has reviewed all bank accounts. Only one of the 11 accounts has been fully
vetted, and the remaining ten are in progress. She noted that the firm is
reviewing all statements for all accounts for 12 months.

Mr. Deville shared the statement of budgeting versus actual for 2018 as
prepared by P&N and noted that CATS had $26,438,164 in total operating
expenses. There was $2,917,014 in CATS generated revenue, $19,266,570 in
non-federal subsidies, and $5,304,758 in federal subsidies. The net
operating balance was $1,050,177.




Vi.

Recommend renewal of automated fuel dispensing services contract with
Mansfield Oil (formerly FuelTrac)

Ms. Lisa Sanchez noted that this is a contract initiated by the City-Parish
and CATS is a participant. The contract originated in 2014 and this is the
fourth renewal. The contract is for gasoline and diesel utilized by all CATS
vehicles and is based on Oil Price Information Services (OPIS) pricing.

Ms. Sanchez shared that CATS is only billed for fuel actualiy used, not fuel
delivered to the agency.

Mr. Brandt moved that the full board recommend the renewal of the
automated fuel dispensing services contract with Mansfield Oil and Mr.
Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. Beliue invited public comment and there
was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend award of construction contract for Cortana Transit Center
construction project

Mr. Darrell Brown iet the members know that the solicitation was rebid after
the two original bids were deemed to be flawed.

Three bids were received from the rebid solicitation and all three were
deemed to be responsive. Kelly Construction Group was the lowest
responsive bidder at $524,848.

Mr. Cohran moved to recommend the full board award the contract for
Cortana Transit Center construction project to Kelly Construction Group
and Mr. Brandt seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none, The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CAHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
March 15, 2019
9:30 a.m.

5700 Florida Boulevard,
Ninth Floor Conference Room
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806

MINUTES

The Planning Committee met on Friday, March 15, 2019, at 9:30 a.m. Present at the
meeting were members Kevin O’Gorman, Jim Brandt, Kahli Cohran, and Laurence

Lambert. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown, members of CATS staff, and
members of the public.

Plank Road BRT Update

Mr. Stephen Lumpkin of SUB Group shared the progress of the feasibility
analysis, including the Phase One project status, project schedule, alternative
BRT station locations, and design intent. He noted the firm is at a stopping point
until decisions are made by CATS.

Mr. Lumpkin gave an overview and he and Mr. James Baker noted that asset
management is an issue on Plank Road. Mr. Lumpkin shared that the Delmont
Village outbound location has drainage issues that are concerning.

It was noted that there are ADA requirements that must be met when developing
station locations and that there are multiple limitations on Plank Road. There are
spatial limitations at some stop locations as well DOTD traffic restrictions that
must be considered.

Mr. Lumpkin shared that alternate locations should be considered for the
Delmont Village outbound as well as the Winbourne inbound and outbound
station locations. He reminded them that all the information to this point is
preliminary.

There was discussion regarding the size and design of the station locations as
well as the height of the curbs and stations for level boarding.



It was noted that these locations have not been environmentally cleared nor
have the National Environment Policy Act (NEPA) requirements been met.

There was discussion of the cost incurred to this point and it was noted that the
design is paid with local funds and the construction is paid with grant money.

It was noted that CATS needs to look at three other sites to determine alternative
locations.

There was discussion concerning requirements that need to be met for FTA’s
approval and the agency’s BRT route will meet the minimum requirements.

Plank-Nicholson BRT update

Mr. Bryan Jones of HNTB let the members know that CATS and the City-Parish
are working to have the best, most efficient coordination as possible. He noted
that HNTB would likely have more stop locations than necessary cleared
through NEPA to ensure that any shifts that occur are covered in the clearance.
This will provide flexibility to create the best locations.

Mr. Jones shared that some of the criteria the FTA has in looking for successful
grant applications are 15 minute headways, off board fare collections, and level
boarding site. He noted that the FTA also wants to ensure that ridership is
maximized on the route, which means creating more stops and at convenient
locations.

Mr. Jones noted that HNTB anticipates approximately four months to complete
the NEPA process.

FTA coordination discussion

Mr. Garrick Rose noted that CATS has been in contact with the FTA regarding
the joint BRT projects to ensure that CATS is compliant. He shared that FTA is
willing to work with CATS and hopes to see the BRT project be successful. They
want to ensure they are investing in an effective project.

Hub updates

Mr. Deville shared that there will be an action item to consider awarding the
construction project to Keliy Construction. If that contract is awarded, the
Cortana Transit Center should be slated to begin construction in the next thirty
days.

Mr. Baker noted that the revenue service at the Cortana Center is scheduled to
begin July 28". He let the members know that there will be regular shelters
installed at the Center and there will be safety installations and passenger
amenities.




Mr. Deville let the members know that the downtown transit center is still being
considered as muitiple small stops rather than one large center. Some of the
mini hub locations being considered are the Hollywood Casino, the Town
Square, and the Visitor Center.

Mr. Rose shared that CATS is working with the DDD to promote the downtown
sites as well as the Capitol Park Trolley.

Mr. Deville shared that CATS legal counsel is working with LSU to finalize the
sale of the property in North Baton Rouge.

Mr. Deville noted that CATS is considering locating a South Baton Rouge Transit
Center at the as-yet-determined multi-modal suburban site of the commuter rail
station near the Baton Rouge General.

There was lengthy discussion on the Scuth Baton Rouge site and several
committee members inquired as to the previous location that was designated at
Our Lady of the Lake Children’s Hospital.

Mr. Deville fet the members know that the Children’s Hospital site is still being
considered as the transit center location along with the multi-modal location.

Baker Park and Ride update

Mr. Deville and Mr. Baker noted that the Baker facility will be a bus layover
facility as well as a park-and-ride facility as envisioned by Mayor Waites of
Baker. It was noted that CRPC is funding a study and that CATS is paying the
local match for the study.

There was discussion of the capital budget and it was noted that the budget stiil
has not been submitted to the board for approval, and this project has not been
added to the budget.

It was noted that the Baker project would be added to the capital budget when it
is sent to the board for approval.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




puewag %™ UONALISANS % @

> o
o? & 2 2 P ¥ A
N o N & <) > o S
27 S 22 W S & & & & & ,%v.r & 4&%
> & @ 0
ﬁpﬁ 4%..0 @%v a.n»o,%
_ %0 S0
. %02 I
_ _ %0v
_ | _ 05" T . ST
| | %09 | ., ; _ 10T 99T
i ws e €8T T T ST gpp 8T M £
| | R L_ %00T NN.N ST
puewaq *sa uonduasgns Aianonpoud (Hdd) 1noH Jad sie8uassed
Atenigaq Asenuer BEL[WERETq] JagLuanop 1390120 Jaquiaidas 1sndny Anp aunf Aepy
. %0'SL
%008
%0°G8
%006
%0°56
%0°86
%0001

(dL0O) @2uewOpRd dWil-UQ



T8¢ ()83
Z8S 859
€90L T6SL
9¢6L 678
Asenuer

Atenigaq

61728

(414
TL9
€r99

YTEL
Jaquiadaqg

LTT
9
T60L

SeLL
13qWBA0N

12¢0120
| _

ore
0e9
il
19€8

T9¢g8

65¢C €E€C SSsT
8€9 S0S 0s9
8499 €198 9TrL
12371 8116 9908
Jaquiaydas snany Ainr

66¢ i Moys oN m
€59 08s suolje||@sue) JoquinN |
T6%9 766l sdii) pelejdwod m
09sL sdii] panpayos m

0001

0002

000€

000t

000s

VLSS

0009

000L

0008

0006

00007

moys oN/pajaaue)/paiajdwo) *sa sdii] pajnpayds



; o &> &
a” & e &2 (e} & A
> & S & 2 P & %
.
0
Z
¥
9
8
0T
T
T
9T
8T
0z
squiejdwo) g
SIBYD|SAYMA [BIOL SISpIY |el0L ™
Aeniga4 Atenuer Jaquianaq Jaguasnon 18q0390 Jaquaidag 1sn8ny
0
000T
000t
000€
000t
000S
0009
000
L069
aLvL 0008
9908 vs6L 6L6L
LLV8 0006

1526 0000T



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802
- PHONE:  225.389.8920

CHTS

CARPITRL AREA TRANSIT BYSTEM

Confiecting pou t “what maf_f_erél

MEMORANDUM

To: William “Bill” Deville, CATS CEC

From: Lisa M Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager
James Godwin, CATS Maintenance Director ~- ,29

Date: March 8, 2019

Re: Recommendation to Renew Mansfield Oil Contract
Automated Fuel Dispensing Services Contract
4" Renewal Period: April 1, 2019 thru March 31, 2020
(via City of Baton Rouge - RFP Soficitation — Bid #A14-0280)

Background:
In the summer of 2014, CATS was invited by the City of Baton Rouge to

participate as a separate named entity in their Automated Fuel Dispensing
Services RFP-Solicitation #A14-0280 for diesel and gasoline fuels. This
solicitation was led by the City of Baton Rouge (City-Parish C-P} and was
competitively advertised and later awarded to FuefTrac, Inc. Prior to the award
of contract, CATS Procurement participated on the C-P proposal evaluation
selection committee and in the recornmendation to award a confract to
FuelTrac, Inc.

The corifract fusl prices are based on the weekly published Qil Price
Information Services {OPIS) plus an administrative consignment “mark-up”
fee of $0.039 which has remained the same since the inception of this contract,
plus applicable taxes, The calculation is: OPIS + Mark-up + Applicable Taxes
= Price Per Gallon (PPG).

Utilizing an automatic fuel dispensing service allows CATS to anly pay for the
amount of diesel fuel actually used, rather than the gallons dumped into CATS
on-site two (2) 10,000 galion tanks. This contract also allows CATS o obtain
gasoline fuel for service cars, small para-transit vans, lawn eguipment, etc,
from the designated City Parish DPW maintonance lots. The price for gascline
is calculated the same way as described above for diesel, except that the fuel
tank locations are not located on CATS premises. Billing is kept separate for
CATS for payment purposes and tax examption status.

CATS pariicipated in the original coniract from November 1, 2014 through thru
March 31, 2016 and in the 1* renewal period from April 1, 2016 through March
31, 2017, the 2™ renewal period from April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018
and the 3" renewal period from April 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019. The
solicitation contains language that allows contract renewals up to seven (7)
years or thru October 31, 2021.




© 2250 Flovida Boulevard -

~BatonRouge, LAT0802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

CATS

CARTAL ARER TRANSIT BYSTEM

; Ga};,ra(:::tif:g‘ yoir f whai' matters:

In November, 2018 CATS consented to the Assignment of Contract between
FuelTrag, Inc. and Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, GA and the City of
Baton Rouge, per agreement of same, signed on 7/20/18 by stated parties.

Recommendation to Renew Contract:

The City of Baton Rouge has approved the 4™ renewal of this contract for an
additional twelve 12 months for the period of April 1, 2019 thru March 31, 2020
(ses attached info.). CATS must follow the same terms and conditions and
renewal periods as the City Parish if we continue participation in this contract.

James Godwin, CATS Maintenance Director has found this contract to be an
advantageous partnership with the City Parish and with Mansfield Oil.
Therefore, CATS Procurement recommends the 4% renewal of contract for an
additional 12 months for the period of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020,
If you concur with this recommendation, please place this item on the March
19, 2019 Board Agenda for approval.

If you have any questions, please lef me know.

GeC: Darrell Brown, CATS CAG
James Godwin, CATS Malntenance Director
Clty Parigh Procurement Depariment




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

Lisa M Sanchez, CPPB
Procurement Manager
Isanchez@brcats.com

brecats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARERA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEMORANDUM March 8, 2019

To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO
Darrell Brown, CAQO

From: Lisa M Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager
James Baker, Capital Improvements Director / Project
Manager

Subject: CATS Procurement Process and Bid Review Summary

Recommendation for an Award of Contract
ITB Solicitation #2019-CortanaTransitCtr-002

Purpose:
The purpose of this Procurement Summary is to document the procurement process

and to recommend an award of a contract for the referenced Construction of the
Cortana Transit Center contract.

Background:
The purpose of the ITB is to secure a contract for a firm to handle the construction of

the Cortana Transit Center — Civil Work Improvements (Public Works/Construction) as
described in the referenced ITB.

Procurement Process:

The solicitation was advertised in The Advocate (official journal) and in the Weekly
Press (DBE Publication) on February 7, 14 and 20, 2019. The ITB notification was also
emailed directly to 53 contractors, including 15 small businesses and DBE firms. A Pre-
bid conference and site visit was also held for the attending vendors on February 13"
at 11:00am. During the open inquiry period, CATS received 3 questions, which were
answered via an Addendum to the ITB on February 20, 2019. On March 6, 2019 CATS
Procurement Department received three (3) bids in response to the ITB from the
following firms: (1) Kelly Construction Group (total bid amount: $524,848); (2) The
Luster Group (total bid amount: $551,831); and Faulk & Meek General Contractors
(total bid amount: $680,557).

Bids Received and Reviewed:
CATS Procurement Department staff conducted a compliance review of the lowest bid
received and found it responsive and to meet the requirements of the ITB.

Contract Award Recommendation:

CATS Procurement and the Project Manager recommend awarding this contract to the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Kelly Construction Group, for $524,848,
which is within the CATS current budget amount for this project.

Note: If award is approved, CATS Procurement will issue the Purchase Order (contract) to Kelly
Construction Group. The contractor will prepare all required documentation and is anticipated to commence
work within three (3) weeks of issuance of the Notice to Proceed (NTP). Dates are subject to acceptance of
Performance Bond and a Certificate of Recordation from the EBR Clerk of Court, per ITB.



“BT0Z "9 UDIE "WAQD:E :8¥ed ang pig ISI| JOPUSA e
0} uQ_WEm pue ajisgam 01 g1 | _qu.oa SIVO —6BLI9Z | .40 nousues)euenon-gLozs auy} Jo FOEL# Hd
‘077 ‘dnod) uopongsuo) All@X ‘Jepplq 1semo| 0} L1 — JoJUaD ISUB) | 6L0Z/6L/E aouenssi 971 ‘dnoig iajuan
pieme Bulpuswiwiodal s| pue ‘spiq ¢ paAledal S1Y0 BUBMOD JO UOONASUOD anoiddy 10 SyPaMm 000'526¢ uonaNJIsuUc Jisuelj eueno)
‘pauado spig — 61/9/€ ‘Parciddy 34 — 6LIFLIE loy g1l ‘Giagy | o1 pleog € UMM | 1500 xouddy Aney all uononiisuod
2
S82IABG
HpNnY |BulaiX3
uoisuad
‘suondo [emaual JeaA-suo gL/LE/ZL 2 S1VD
Z yim ‘pzoz ubnosyl gLoz w Bulpus sies ) Jepusie) 104 Buipua joenUOD Bupsixe SL/EL/LL sieah ¢ 1ERUCD Pl o
‘8L/0E/01 uo UNC@QQ d4d ‘pieog ||inj 01 sAowW 0O) Um>o._anm ueg mom_amv._ 0} Sa0iInBS Um>0;_n_n_< 10} 000'8F LS 9||IAI2}]1oN B s201Mag . m
sjlwwoD 394 — 81/8/LL paacidde pieog - QLIEL/LL JIPNY [Bulaixd 1o} d4 pleog Le0e 92d 6L0¢ uer }soQ xolddy | ayemyjajisod d4y Hpny
Silepy 8jeiodiod pue [ | juawaindold ‘suoneiadg
‘Buisiyaapy  ® Bugesuepy  ‘woddng  uiwipy  [Bieusg
‘9ouBUld SB Uons 'Alessedau se 'SlyD J10j Sa0IAIes
18UJ0 puE 3Ry 8pN(oul 0} SBOIBS '6L/EL/Z B)ISTOM SIVD | S90IAI9S ||BI-UO FRy-uoU
uo pejsod pue paNgUIsip 89 0} DAY — BLIBIZ "SBOIABS | J0) d-4H BNssial [IM S1VD # Hd
[IE9-UO IRV UOL J0j dFH anssial 0} S1VD ‘(BlSgam SLVD (pa|j@ouen) agl saoieg | SSYIASS IBD-UD
Uo pue sIopuaA o} Bl BIA) Pa|[@dueDd S| D4y — BL/FL/E | SSOIASS ([BD-UQ 10} DAY agl agL agL 1500 xouddy asi 38y S9JIAIBS JBY
"Dje 'seuIUDeLU }@30l pUB SYSON 'SpIE|[0q Alajes
‘Bugub ‘sspeidagsal ysely ‘syoes axiq ‘Buness iebuassed
‘sanyoe) Jebusssed pasopus ‘abuno| SJeAlp ‘sainionns LOEL# Hd
Adouen ‘sfeq Buped sng simes) (M saliRe; pauueld Jajua) Nsuel | oIS A0 HsUBLL YEN
alj1 "auo Sl IaYUaY JISUBL| HEN 21aUm ‘Sisjuad tajsues snq | eBnoy uoieg YUON Bt Joj gl uBisaq SaJIAIag
Jolew p jo sauss e Jo JuawidojpAsp ay) eyelepun o] w4 | seojnas ubisaq Jo) DAY ag.l ag.i asg.l 1509 xoiddy asl El] ubiseq 33V
g .ﬂmmu ¥d
194 paynlos Jou D4y suopesyads |ealuyoa) b3 pajeay
aly) Buneslu vl epplq aAlsuodsal Jsemo| ay) Buluiuuiep u| Juswdinbg pajelay MR B SauBWY Nsued]
SPIQ UOHONASUOD 8L YIM SO ISISSE OS|E [|iM JUEYNSUCD |  PUE SapuBULIY JISUBI] 10} agl ubisaq SONMRS
ublsag 0j0 ‘sedeospuet ‘sysoly ‘si)EUS BpnPUl (M | Seoies uBisaq o) D4y as. agL as.L 150D xoiddy aglr a9y uBisaq 38V
‘gLI6Z/8 @ed mc_cmn_o _mmoao.un_ ‘alisgam GLL#t ¥d —o>_m
S1vD Uuo pejsod ‘ISl| JOpUBA ©0) JUSS UONEDYNOU pue Bl 2 PY yue|d
PasILaAPE sI D4y MeN — 81/Z/8 “Bulobuo ||s suonenjeas — SII|I0B) YSUBL MaU (ow g1) (owgy) suonels |1yg
8L/0L/0L "8rS Woy GG ppG ZZES 4O JUNOLWE BY) Ul 1940 [BUY | SPNjOUL 0} "PAIE Bl4 B PY 8L/IEL/LL ast agl Sa0IAIeg Sa2IAIeg
paAl@dal S1VO — 81/SZ/01 ‘PJeOg (I} 0} BAOW 0} paaosdde | jue|d UO SUONE)S 1Mg 1o} paaoiddy @leg @leq 000°'czes T ubissq =
S8jIWWo) Ig4 — 81/8/LL parcsdde pieog - gL/gl/LL | Ssoweg ubisaq Jo) DAY pieog pajewnsy | pelewns3 | 1sop xouddy | ‘dnouin grs ELy ubisag 338V
dwoy sIaxIop
02/62/2 NIy} femauel oo
9L/L1/8 ‘1oBIUOD Bunyees (swiepd dwon 555 _iwm (o7 i) = o1
jo |emausl paaoidde pieog SIVD — 9L/0E/8 PIZIBUl | S0 PUB ANjIgerT jesld phty dwog JayIop
[emaual joBlJUOD — QL/G/6 C[EMBUBI LUoW 9 B Bq | ‘suojebisesul ‘seainies 0Z/62/2 Ozreere :Ew E_mmu IR 2 Ajiqen
[Im 100D SIU) ‘Jabeuely 108lold Jad — LL/LZ/L "PaAcidde wien Jojsnipy 104 ybnosy ‘61/82/Z SI m_w_”.,_nmmcww_.__w e 199]4 sng
384 - LL/OL/g - pancuddy pieog — /L/GL/3 "percidde |  joesuoo seef G jeuiblio) [EMBUSY 3lep pua Sarias Fliron juswabeuepy swie|)
394 — 8L/SLZ "Pancidde pieog — 81/0Z/Z 1eeh Buo 1o} | 61/82/Z — 8L/L/E 40 pouad anoiddy aLng BLILIE pajepdn swie|g a4y =
panss| JoeNUOD) MBN — 8L/L/E "parcidde pieog — 6L/SL/L |emaual panoiddy pleog 0} pieog 0Z/62/Z jemauay 0} J9jey umoig 208G J2)sn .—ﬁ<
v
SJUBLIWO? | SOION papiAoid paroiddy ajeq ayeq iy awepN adA}] uondussag
1oNpoid [S92lAIaS pieog pug Hels JOPUIA Juon ERITVETS

syjuouw ¢ 0 | Ulym uolay pieog Buipuad syoeloid = en|g

_ mou [eaosddy pieog spasu / Wa)| UCHRIY = MO]||BA

|

6L0Z ‘6) yosep

pieog S1V9 10} bunsi jusawainsoid S1VID




‘S|EMBUS) Yluow
-anjem) (f) Jnoy 03 dn Joy uondo ayl Yim ‘syjuow Z|
10} 000°GZ1$ JO JUNOWE 8y} Ul 50 O} UoIIEPUaLWILLIOIal
pJEME 10BIUOD UM ‘80UB10g 1100y S1 uuy Buuods
1saubiH (D3d) @8piwwo) uonenjeA |esodold ay)
Aq pajenjeaa alem Uyoiym sjesodold g paalsdal S1vD

“‘fouaby ay)

40 suswys|dwooaoe ay}
9SBOMOUS pue ‘Ajunwwoo
ay} ul puelq aamisod

e ulejulew pue pjing ‘aseq
diysiapu S1yD asealoul
0} subisap pue salbajens

'ssald Apjeap, @yl pue aJedoApy UL Ul PSIUBAPE | gunsyew ‘joul ‘swesbold 8LISLI6 Jeak sad e e
pue suuy ubisep olydesB gg 0} juss sem UOHE)DIOS Bupasew Bupnoaxs pue paroiddy Winwixep aJusldg ubiseq
ddd uy - 8L/2Z/L ‘parciddy pieog — 81/8L/6 Buneauo ul 51y 1sissy pieog 6L/0E/6 gL/LI0L 000°s21$ 120y ddy slydess
D
"JOEJJUOD) [EMBUBY Bulpuawiwosay
JeNeT 030D 89S 'BL/LE/E MUY LL/L/F JOo poued |emaual
10} |erocsddy pieog spasu JOBJUOD — LL/LZ/E '1OBIILOD
Jo |emaual paaoidde pieog — LL/BZIE PEQUOD
lemauay Buipuswwosey Jeye] 03D 89S ‘GL/LE/E NIy
gL/L/ 4o pousd [emauai Joj panosddy pieog — L1/0Z/E Ol OSES)
‘gouspuodsenos e uo paidos sem  aseyoingd 120z Ny} RUB [B5a|E]
40 8yl pue oseneny ypm paubis pue pazieul BIgBIIBAE | #L/EL/8 U0 (6dd) _.m_w ﬂ_o.w__w__mw e
SEM J0BJUOD — 81/9Z/S 'Usued AND Aq percidde . semeual | oeiiieng | |eb jad soud g, niyy panciddy
= sted AID BIA
‘oed|[an4 Aq joenU0D paubisse sem |IO PlelusSuBp WgisA GLIsUpdslp 0z/Le/e ARaieua il X weay joequUOD
; Wa [en} 8y ui ajedioed niyj [emaual | gmAuod | penoidde | wpeeco g | (PBLLIBNI Ag 3
Jey} uoneoynou paAleday — gL/g/0L ‘pleog yoiel\ o} o) Ainus sjeledes e 129k auo 128k 7 1PUNGY + SO paubisse sem) — SLVO ® o4-0uior
of |m SIYL “S1VOD Payljou pue Jesk suo 10} PeMBUBI | se uoneyolos [ony pLOZ Ul | 40y eoiddy Weung ola d-2 AJag oju| o :>_n_n.n_ eujjese pue
sey yskied A0 — 61/8/2 "PeAciddy 34 — 6L/VLIE | S1vO popnjoul ysued AiD | o) paeog 0Z/LE/CO | FLILO/LL 221d |10 PIsysuepy kagsy | 19S8IQ |8nd
1K 1ad ¢/7'969% = Jeak Jad vZ02
"L L/EZ/Z U0 WNPUBPPY BIA INO Sasuodsal 1E1'8zes J0 siuawhied z ybnousuy Ammmjm Bijjiey o:
oy /1/0z/z Aq asey enp seunbul “LL/Z/E %OBQ | 0g'z1z%S 150D jEo) (2V 'SIEPSNODS) | sieak aseyaind/
anp sjesodold “suonmpsul [elueuly aidiinw 0} payolos "pouad Jesk ; Jeno Aeg ‘sIeok dio) |eyded L 10}
d¥ - £1/8/Z "S9Sng BIID 01 Joy S| BuoueuLy |eAcidde 1o} “sesng Bio 01 Luzie J 10 sasng a11and BBy e
pieoq |} 0} erow o} wiey panoidde 394 - L1/9L/E "S8SN] | aoueuly aseyoing/eses parcidde [eseiq By edlIBWY =nd 9dueulq sny
Biio 01 jo Buioueuy psacidde pieog — /L/1Z/E sng [eyden pieog ¥Z021°0 | LL0zidy | oL 9oueuly jo oueg a4 Buioueuy
4
eaglibul OMﬁ_ "18)}8| pleme ansu| O m_mnwww_mww _m..swcmm_mm_.hm xt,.“,
Su} Aq pejosies se peimisul 013 Buipuswwooal | oo oS 520 | o om:coum_ H_UEES mrmwmw i:v% 3
03D SlYD 0] JAN8| pIEME JO] UO[EPUSWILLIOIS oul 01 1338y ‘021998 parcidde 188k 8UG
ay} pasedaid JusweInooid §1/gL/y parcidde pieog 101500 E10} € J€ Jeak pieog AMBSU | e | TOHPEISHES
S1vO — 8102 ‘9l |udy uo pleog S1vD Aq psaoiddy e 80IM} SABAINS pleOg 8L/oLIy 6L/0E/ 8LILIS 0z1'89% 213 JInsuo) Jawoisn)d
'S8U0 Mau upm aoe|dal
"JaU00s 10 SABp Qg IXBU U UIJIM JNO SPIq BUY) BABY o hﬂﬁﬂwﬁ\_,:.ﬂ_ﬁ%mw%mmm
0} Buidoy a1e oA\ "spuny [esepa4 Buisn ‘'SIaysem snq | (z) omy o uopelolos au) sialsep sng
¢ 10} ‘9je|dwoo jsow|e ‘pauelp Buteq si gl| — 6L/8/Z | Buidopasp s juawsinooid 000'00¢S 153 aglL =il uononisuon
SJUBWILIOY | SOION papiAoid parosddy aj1eq ajeq e aweN adA ) uonduoasaqg
JoNpoid /SadIAleS pleog pug uels _ Jopuap Jjuon 20IAI0S

Syjuow ¢ 0} | UIylim uoidy pieog Buipuad syoaloid = anig

_ mou [eAoiddy pieog spasu | W) UOIIOY = MO||@A

61L0Z ‘6l UdJel

pieog S1V) 10} Bupsi jusawainooid S1VID




*1010BJJUOD S30IAIaS u_wcmbm.._mn S1V¥D se CO_umtOn_owL._. i AMNON niay S|emaual
AW Ol JOBIUOD JO PpJEME UB SpUsWIWOolal SIvD .cozwwh_mwmcm‘_._. 10BHUOD leakauoz | 000°GL6'9% vav
synsel 98RIWWOD uoheniead |esodold 8y} uo paseq AN 01 9L/0Z/Z 1eak g /M JoeNu0D junowe -dsues| Sa2IAI8g
Bunesw 394 —gL/ZL/L ‘Bunesw pieog ge4 [un pausjep 18pincld 8dIneg paaosdde |enusiod) e joeljuod $90INIRS '
pieogd — 81/91/L "AN O} pJeme paroidde pieog — gL/0Z/z | NSUel|-Bied PAIOEAUOD pieog 1ZI0EY 81/19/S 1eaf g AN dy jisueneied
d
‘leacidde pieogq |udy 1o 1@yoed uo aq pjnoys
plemy ‘azaasnue Joj adejd ul JoBRUOD B pRY Jou
SABY &M PUB ‘|10 J0joW UO asealoul aaud pejsanbal 000'04$ azaaluy
IO ISEQDUNS "8Zaaliuy pue |IQ JoJoN 10} 6L/0¢/E “JOBRIUOD UO AjUa.LND JOU piemy/ 1800 pue
Jo ajep Buuado pig yim ‘Mou N0 S| 1| UY — 6L/L/E | 'ezasinuy pue |0 JojolN 6L/LE/ZL | JoBun] “xoiddy asL au (10301) 11O
0]
149
PY jue|d pue
139 BUBLIOD
‘suieuNoy Buuup 40} sahjjually
‘spiejjoq ‘sejoejdeoes yses ‘suonels Buibieyo Lyg jisued|
‘siejued 'S0l oHIq SB UYONS ‘SOIUBWE JIOUS | py juelg pue eugton 000'085$ sojddng
-8Ui-140, 8pnjoul o) mou payelsp Buleg gl - 6L/8/Z | 10} sanuBwWE JBUS-BUI-IO agl as.l agL 1500 xolddy asgr aLl ® S|elejey
W
610¢/6L/¢ Uo
pieog S1vD Aq panoiddy
PEeRUOD saoIAIeg [ebaT
1eaf (€) sa1yL 02/81/5
; sele ‘Aldde nayj sl joequod
) 8l Ae pus pue g0z 6L0Z/6L/2 sajes Aunoy + ¢ ssolnlag S3IIAID
1eah ise| wolp sabueyd | g| Aepy uibaq oy sor(d Ul panoiddy FAACINL 6LIBLIS sa4supley | O 1dV Ui jeba tAlag
ON "10BNUOD JesA-¢ mau paaocsdde pieog — 6L/61/Z | 29 0} 10BIUOD JEIA-C MBN pieog (mau) (mau) AlLpuopy MeT alpeqy | jnsuod [ebaq
i
"Jueynsuo) e se asjuadxa siy buisn Ag
Ansnpur ysues; sy} ul 8susLadxXe JO YIjeaM SIY WO}
1yBUBQ 0} BNURUOD O} &Y PINOM S1VD ‘Blqe|ieAe S|
JBAIOL "IN PUE B|gepJoye S|}l JUSXS By} O} paly S| e%w\ wwmwﬂoo
039 Aindeq wwuey Buo) B usym/ll usaag "uoiisod siy) P
ul 8BS |Im Jopusa ayl awl jo yibua| uo yusbunuod P : S
Sl [BJ0] JUNOWe JoBRIUOD ‘S0 Joj uomsod mau (4an1j0 | JOSIAPY
e sI syl "S1vD Ag pauy s1 030 Ande(q jusueuwuad 6L0Z/9L/% Ined) 911 paje|ay pue
B yun anes 0] ‘sedimag  Aosinpy  pelejey anoldde 000°09% ‘sausnpuj 03D fndeg
pue 030 Aindeg wueju| Joj JoBHUOD — GL/8JE JOBJUOD JUBJINSUOD MBN 0} pleog BLILE/ZL “xouddy aby meN 1nsuoD wiaju|
|
papIAOid panoiddy ajeq ajeq awepN adA | uonduasaqg
sjuawiwo $9}]0 4 : LLl
¥ SN JoNpo.d /Sa2IAIRG pieog pu3g He)s My JOpusp Jjuon CRITVETS

SyjuowW ¢ 03 L Ulylm uondy pieog Bulpuad sjoeloid = anig

_ Mol [eaoiddy pleog speau | Wwaj| Uuoldy = MO||PA

610Z ‘6l Yoiep

pieog S1Vv) 10} Bunsiy jusawainooid S1VID




020z aunp ssaooid
IEEVETRT S

‘saoud sWes 1. £1/1€/8 Ze/Le/B
NILR JOBAUOD PUBIXD ybnoiLy LVLLE | og mwmqoowm i
0} paalbe Jeadpoo s|jemausl iy s 511500 1eaf aUo Z /M
‘Yol (€) B Jeslpoog () S et Jeak 1e8hpoog | abessay 9107 0Z/1LE/8 NIY) Sieaf
‘aucysebpug (1) woy spiq £ paneoay S1yD ‘Buusdo pig auo Z /m M £ 10} JPRHUOD
L1/ZZ[9 "1opuaA 8|qisuodsal pue sAISUOdSal 1S9Mo| 3y} Sem LL/EL/L panoidde 354 sieah ¢ ioy | jpoEZUOD e 211 (2oueUajUIERR)
auoisabplg ey} paulwIslep Sem 1| -LLI0E/9 "auc)sabpug LLIBLIL joelU0D uaung (steah ¢ ‘suoneladp ail sasng 10}
0] ]OBJUOD JO pJEME UB pUSWIWOIal sjdag juswsindold LLI8LH panoiddy leniy| 1041500 159) all] seouauwny Aiddng
pue BN SIVOI-LL/EL/L "L1/8L/L uo parciddy pieog panoiddy pieog pieog 0zZ/LE/8 LLILIG 000°009% auoisabpug | |eusien aseaT adll
L
SAS WAY ® OdV AV e i
1en 3
10} abeianon suBLSIIEW faueie AueLEM S9JIAIDG
"GL/LE/L NIUL BL/1L/8 WO SWRISAS YAY B OdY AV | Alueliepn @ soueuajuley SLILLIL 9 ‘sanueLEm y M woddng | yojepoINOY
1o} abelanco fjueliem pue poddns yoa) maual o] [eacidde ‘Hoddng yoa | panoiddy “Joddns yoa) alemyosg yoa) 10}
pieoq Buipued wial| - 8L/ZLIL '8L/LL/L uo panosddy pieog | gl/zL/. penosdde 34 pieog BLILEIL 8L/L/g joueskauo | YDJBINBINOY | somisg 2lemyjog
‘6102
-piw Buipieme pue sAep 09-0€ UIYIM N0 d4Y AU} aney 8IBMIOS d¥3
0} Buidoy ale app ‘uonewlojul Jayieb o) sjuswpedaq SLYD | — 21eMI0S apim-wa)sAs o) slemyos sk
118 ypm Buppom Joamu| Jo sLjuow Jaye ‘d-4y auy Bunjelp | 44y ue anssi pue yeip o) 3pIM S dy3
uo J0sMmu| yiw Buppiom S| JuBWINd0Id SIVD — 6L/8/Z | Bupom Ajusung si 51D asl agl adl agl waishs alemyog
‘d4d 8y} jo wHCmEm.__DUML |EDIUYDS] BU} }@all papiwugns
sjesodoud sy yi Buuiwislep ur Apeaib (D34) ssnIWWOD
uonenjeaa |esodoid SlyD diBu |Im 2ouUBSISSE  SIYL
‘sWw ale mt.._mEm.__DUm._ pue speau comwmu_.n—_umn_w |eaiuyos)
PUB MOS S1YD 2Insua 0] paAlsoal m_NwOn_O._n_ 3y} JO malnal
[EDIUYD9} By} Ul Sjuswiedaq JUBWSIN0ld PUB || SIVD juswdojaasg
ISISSE OS[E |IIM JUB)NSUOD BUL "SIV Ag pssiienpe g O} | 81/91/8 parcidde 394 . uoijeaijioadg
d-¥ UE 1oj UOHN|OS [BOILLDS) BIEMIOS B 10} Suoneoyioads p— . auj sAS dy3
[B3lUYosl  pue (MOS) YoM Jo ododg pajelep e 8L/12/8 parosddy Bupinsuod | oo e
dojaasp |Im JueyNsuoy aYL "g1/LZ/g uo pasciddy pieog panoiddy pieog pJeog 6LI0EIY 8L/LI6 pLY'v6% Joanju) d4y SIEMIJOS
"yoea SYUOW-Z | 10j Maual
0} suondo z yum J0BQUCD JBBA-g  "OU| ‘seoinieg ALnoag s|emaual S3DIAIBG
J9SID\A 0) papleme JOBHUOD AUND8S — gL/SL/L UO pleme ‘UOIIEO0| “PA|g BPLO|Y SL/EL/ILL Jeak-auo 15090 [enuue 'au| ‘seoIAIRg _o.:.w:mu
|leuiBuo panciddy pieog "pieog ||} o} @Aow 0} pancidde 0622 SLVvD 1e seolneg panoiddy : 240 .1 000°282% Aunoag sa0Iag
@apWwwoD 94 — 8L/8/LL parcidde pieog - SLIEL/LL pIeng AIUNDBS - J/ vz pieog 6LILEZL 6LILIL “xoiddy 19s19M dd Ajunosg
S
S)UBWILIO? | S3}ON papiaoid pano.iddy ajeq ajeq iy ETIETY] adA}] uonduoseq
1oNpoid [Sa2IAIeS pieog pu3j yels lopuap Huon CLITVETS

syjuow ¢ 03 | uiyym uonoy pieog buipuad sjosfoid = an|g

_ MoU [eAolddy pieog spasu / Wa)| UONOY = MO||BA

[ 610z ‘61 uosen

pieog S1vO 40} mr__u_w_l_ jusuwiaindoid S1V9I




S

‘epuabe bunesw pieog 91/0g/ZL U0 8q 0} paNpayas
S| UONEPUSWUWOI9Y PIEMY 10BIUOYD ° (0F J9QWSAON

Ag enp ag |m slesodold -sJ8s0d01d [enuajod M_MM_M_M%
a|dginw 0} Umu_m__om cwwnw Sey dd4yd W 9L/0L/LL ~._mm> M_Mmﬁqm wm mF_wm;%mcmmmw%a
‘paAlgoal  s|eso o saybi 21008 - BunsoH
ov:._s. ‘91607 __.:m_mMm__O om m_.w:n_ Fﬂm Mm>w_hn._mm ﬂ._m>>< . ot aklozie) o snid 000°283 B d uBisag-ay
! pue BunsoH sapnjoul panosddy sieah g uBisasy dbo7 saanag
— 9L/SL/Z) "eusgam meu payoune| - £L0z Ainp - uBisag-ay 3)ISqaM pieog BLILE/ZL | LLILO/LO ajewnss jusjeaod SUSqaM )ISqaM
M
"Yoom SIL} J1238| JUSS aq ||IM pue
Z1 o pesjsul sesng g Jo eseyoind ay) 108481 01 pebueyd
aq |Im "O'd au yuswabeuew J1ad ‘9Lz "09Q Ul |eacidde
pieoq 2ouls Buipusd "O'd  3%EPAN — ZL/Le/e ‘(Pioy 1q 83U} Uo 3, . i
uo) sesng g 40} Od @nss! 0} 0FD Wol} ¥d paroidde Rswubisey | 07°922'900'$ nmamh %ﬁww
Bugiemy — ZL/LLip SUOW 9| SI 8yep Aianiep sc=gssalge | ORI [EIG) 8402 98G/nON
8yl 'O'd Buipuss aiojeq way) wol ojul Wy Ang mwwh_ww.% Eﬂmmmmmz_h%o omm,.\.;m__mmﬂwww SRENES LN
uo Buniepy "sesnq g Joj BijD 0} yaam sy} panssi 9L10Z/ZL - paiaplo aq pappe (8) MMM:
aq | / *O"d Bulpuad — LL/LLIL — BIID 01 1U8s "O'd sseuamd or | oeqmon | pensst | W9 | +eoudsnqueg | 8 . -
LV/VZ|L "9OUBUSUIBIN S1VO AQ POAISOBI UBBG BARY | o oocuais torgior | porosddy. | UABAIGD | U00q | gjosemng | 1PSPIPBSE | yome 1esala
S9SNQ g ||2 18y} PeLilou SeM JUsWaINd0ld — GL/S/L ga 0g/'Lzp$ -2oud 1un sng pieog sasng g sey '0'd J9pI0 € 971 ‘Biid Buijjoy S32IYS A
‘B1I9)0Id pUB suopne}s
19A14 MAN ‘QAE WOY SPIG € PBAIOSY SLVO ~ LLELIO0L S ter Buibieys
S]Ep-0] 9pEW USSQ SBY PJEME 1O} UONEPUSLULIODS) ol auase
ON ‘peuluielap uwsaq Jou sey pig 9|qisuodsal pleme mc B . /
: HIDJEYD ejsuj pue
PUE 8AISUOCSD) 1SBMO| 8U] "MBIASI J8pun ||}S 8Je PaAIaoal 6102 Jo a1ep ayy auo pue snq suonels En :
SPIg € IV — LLPL/LL “ecidde o pigoq iy 0} wall sy} zZzged Aq | woy sieak 8U0 10} 1500 BuiBieyo sBuEy AenEg
SAOW 0} PRJOA T84 "AAL AQ PARIWQNS pig aAISuodsSal pue ag 0} Auaneg | G Ixeu auy hun xouddy : papuaix3g/m
paoud }samo| U 0} S8SNq 100} GE 2LI8Ja € Jo aseyaind sy} ‘QLILIE 10} pasn SYZ'IBETS Jh29)9 (ysg)
10} JOBJUOD JO pIEME Ue papuswiwoosal g|yD — Bungeasw ‘suonels Buibieyo asnoy uo panss| Od aq ueo mm:m_“wum € lIEysul Amv sasng
394 - 8LZL/L 'SSNG € 10} QAE O3 pileme paroidde | -Ui g [EISUI pue BBUES 8L/91/1 YoEAUOD cpumssing | PUe sesng S A
pieog - gL/9L/L ‘6L/ZZ/z Aq ajep AseAiep ypm sesng | Aleneq pspusixs/m jooy Gg panosddy € 1o} 201 o303|3 32015 19913
93|3 € 4O J9pJO By} 10} AL O PAWANS "O'd — 8L/L/E | 'SISNQ DUIIBIS £ ISEYIINg pieog €2/9L/L0 | 81/9L/10 Pig [E10) ¢ sasng Buijioy S3PIYIA
‘018 ‘YoIeas
WVS pue ‘ajeoyiad BulkgqoT ‘8ppiyan ay) ul sjusuodwon) L190L000Y+# saoeds
JO 1517 % ‘Bouslwy Ang "2l ‘aseyoind Siy) Joj PauIRIgo v,omwwme [e301 3ehuagy AMZ
ale sjuswnoop v14 eleudoidde sy ainsua o) J0PUBA SIU} =5 S SIEIS V1 Ssed gl SUBA
upm Buptiom ARUBLIND S| JUBUIBINJ0Id SLVD 'L L90L000KT# JoENU0D B1EIS V] oxy 90'99L 6818 | (suyosen) | suwses | g prey
10B1JUOD BBIS BURISINOT U} JO YO SIIES SNg aAleald |  wol) aseyoind o) pusiu SLILLIL Kep 051 xxm wmm>m )
Jopuan pancidde sy wou paseydind aq | SapRIYRA panoiddy 6L/08/1L 21/52Z/8 uoeg sajeg 0TS vav
pasemod auoseb asay) 'gL/gL/. Uo parciddy pieog 8L/Z1L/. panosdde 34 pieog palewnss | palewnsa | zZ'ZGz'cog | sng aAneald | Buyoy S32NYBA
"0}8 ‘Yoless
WVS pue ‘sjeayipa) Buikqqo ‘eppiyeA syy Ui sjusuoduwio) JOBHUOD B1BIS V] 8l L 1901000V b# saoeds
0 1817 % ‘Bouswy Ang "ol ‘sseyoind SIU} IO} PBUIBIGO | WO aSEYOING O} pUBU| (4epi0 joenuoy OIMEZ
Jodisoal
ale sjuawnoop V14 ajeudosdde ey ainsus 0} Jopusa siu) 18e) 2IEIS V1 Ssed gl SUBA
U Bunjiom AusLIng 1 JUBWIND0IY S1VD °L 1901000 81/91/8 panoidde 394 oY |elol (suyoseg) mcm__%wmw lisueli]-eled
J0BIJUOD BJB)S BUBISINOT U} JO LO SIS SNg SAlEsI) siizie Aep pg1L 72'762'c08 <o<>r "
Jopusn pancidde sy} woy peseuond ag (M BpIYSA 8L/12/8 panoiddy 6L/10/Z 81/sz/8 yoes s9jes SPOTS vav
pasamod auljoseB syl ‘gL/Lz/g uo pasociddy pieog panoiddy pseog pieog pajewnsy | palewnse | zz'zez'co$ | SNHE SANE3ID | Bujon S9DIYaA
SJUBLILIOY | SAION papiaoid paroiddy aleq ajeq o awen adA) uonduoasaq
_ JoNpold [sadiAles pieog pug Hels lopuap Juon ELTIVETS

SYjuow ¢ 03 | UIY3IM uoidy pieog Bulpuad syosloid = enjg

_ mou |eaosddy pieog spasu | Wa)| UOHIY = MO|IBA

6L0Z ‘61 yosep

pleog S1V9 40} bunsii juswainsoid S1VI




9

ag pnom yoiym  ‘joenuoo  1abuol Syjuow g
B Ol J3)us 0) asooyo Aew S1vD ‘Aiessaoau Jeuonippe
‘wesboid jojld JoYY °SIY} pejdadoe | punoy SEB SEalE IBUYI0 PUB SBAIRS SIVYD ue mausai 6
pieog oy pue Bugesw pleog | 1Y} SEaJE JUDLND U} IO SPISINC JaYNd SIIN0I o uondo/m U] weJibold
sy} Je passnosip sem siyl —6L/SLE | SLyD anas o welbosd joid ysuenoolp 6LISLIL 6L/6L/9 8LI0Z/Z) 000°sZ$ ‘soTsuel 10]id }iSUBLOIDIN
JOBNUGD JO pieme BUIpuawWwwWooal ucneoldal Spny @ @belo)s pnojo Juswsaoedal J—— PapuaLLIWIOodal
Jans| 03D uag ‘alnua | wesul ‘sayepdn JA ¢ ‘uonnjos Janlas dnyoeq 81024 d4M Janal 030 dd
papUSWILLIOda) D3Id's|esodoid | JaAI9s aUO Ul [|e PuB sapnoul “Iaalas dnyoeq aLzLe sa|bojouydsa) 2ouEeljday
£ PaAi9dal pue pasiuaApy - gLog Jdy | Bumisixa g1vD Joj waysAs || dn-yoeq Jesk G | zgogioz od £2/0€/9 8LLIL 82£'8Z$ ainjuap JaAalag dn yoeg 1|
‘papaau se 03D ay} Aq paubisse syse; osIW 19BNU0D
1Yo pue souepinB  ‘sisAjeue  ‘UoNElNSUOD Sl hmm%mco Bupinsuo) | 030 3y ol BuEIsISsY |eadS HH
"suooun) YH pazijeads Jaulo pue | ‘soiApe jo Aem AQ SS0IAISS/SE0IN0SBl HH | 701810z Od (14 0gg) HH joenuo
sougsisse yH Buninsuo) 8LOZ UNp | aaneBisaaul [enyuapyuod sapiaold JUBHNSUOD | nuos uanupm 6LILEIS 8L/LI9 000°05% HalaAag as(Q jueliNnsuo) HH
P3|} 8¢ ueo suoljisod juedea 'Siseq papasau se uo L1102t 1984U0D Bupinsuon ¥H
[yun suolielsado Ajlep upm Jojoalig YH | SUOISIARL \dd ® Selnljod ‘Buluien dws ‘sypne 9904102 Od 1A om] (ay ovg) Uo[INO N enuod
mau Ag papasu souejsissy LL0Z ddy | ‘smeinal souendwoo/m SsonIes HH SOPINOId | 1Buon usHLmM 6LICZIV LLIVEIY 000°S¥$ euu| uB}Nsuod HyH
“1e8f/000'8$
Jo sesuadxa paNp JO  @AISNoU|
'‘000°'0S$  Junowe  JoBNUOD  XB sL0z/zIe v1jo dnoig
8102 JeW ‘seBueys Jauio ON '6L0Z | (Buikqqo|) saoinies [BUOEONPS PUE SUOKERY | ...om&.u‘on_ Wy Xep ABajens Buninsuop
YBnodyy 1oeuoo pusixy — 6LOZ JEIN | 'Sileyy  [BluslieAcn) sepiacid JUB)NSUOD | nuogusuum | BLILE/ZL 6LIL/L 000°05% ulaynog suonejay juswulanog
‘6L0Z ‘6L ‘uojisod 13010 -
ACN ybBnouyy 20T AON UO >IoMm :_%mn Bunessdo j8IUD SLVD @Yl JO) Uoieas By} ul vohwﬂm_ 971 uojisod
0} 6l JSQWSAON UO JOpuaA O} juss | wes) uawabeuew Jojuss s} pue S1yD isisse L£Z8L0Z Od Uy XEW ‘Kuedwion 009 S1YD 10 S93IAIRG
SEM pP8320.d 0} @oioN — 8LOZ ‘6L AON | 03 uoddns |euocissajoid spinosd 0] JUBYNSUOD | nuon usnum B8L/6L/LL gL/0Z/LL 000°'s2$ 2 11098 [IIM yaieag aAlndaxyg
EENE
ieah BuQ 'zLoz uebag suon BuQ
‘sjsa) Brup uo eseasoul 0G0 B Ao ‘saafo|dws aAsuas Aja4es 10j S80IAISS 801Al8S JO aAIsusg Alajes 1o} saojAag ¥ 8 0
LM NSHI YiM 10BIUOD [EMBURI LJUOW | 8snge 8auejsqns/ [oyospy % Bnig 1o} saolaes od syjuow z| wpy Aued paiyL
-zl 3Y) Buipusixe s SO — 6L/8/E | Jojeasiuwpy Buifiled payL pajepuew Wid | aquon usuim 0Z/0E/¥ 6L/LIS 000°51$ NSHI € 1040y @ Bnug
‘uo paxlom Bulaq sijuswnoop uoneawajdw)
PeyuUOD '8L/0Z/6 Pus pue gL/glL/g | welbold pue swews|y welboid I9q JBHNsSuUoy
uo uibaq 0} 821A9S JOJ JOBId 0 JUSS | BlenjeAs (M ASU) SISUM ‘SSOIAIDS UONEN|BAT S¥1L8L0Z Od JWY XN Sajeloossy S92|AJBg uonenjeAy
lapeT ps=s00ld 0) 9olloN — 8L/0L/g | weibold  3Iga spwoid o JUBYNSUOD | nuopusuum | 8LILE/ZL SLIELIS ovL'ezs$ '8 Bojisld we.boid 390
(mairay JybBisiang
20UB)sISSY aoueldwo) (HOD) malnay mZm:mcm._n_EoU
WBIsIBAD anisuayaidwo) vid [eluusl | v+ Buiwoodn 19Z810Z Od Sajeloossy V.1d 6L0ZAd)
‘PEINosXs 'pazZijeul JOBRNUOD — 6L/9/Z | JO uojeledsid yim S1vD ISISSE O] JUBYNSUOD |  sjuod usnum 6LILE/R SLIVZIZL 168°Lv '8 Boald aoue)s|ssy aoueldwo)
“diysiepes| S1vD puUE pieog
‘8ja|dwod 0} syjuow g Aplewixoidde | o} juas aq |m Lodad [eul4 “Apmis uonesusdwod S90IAIBS
ag pinoys supwWIl "S1vy"D 10} jesodoid Ale|es Joj s)axiew Jejuis o} a1edwod pajeuiuLla) jsuag
pspiwgns  Jaybees - gL/0Z/LL pue diysiapes| S1yD UIM 188w 0} JUBYNSUOD |  5uod usiim jnun 6L/LIL 000°'s¥$ laybe|jes >_u=uw dwoy Aiejeg
‘Pazljeuly yoenuod - 8LIZ LIV
"8L/LE/ZL UBnoIL} puUBiXa pue
'GZ9'ZL$ JO JUNOWE JUSLIND 0} G9.'8LE
PPY :papuswly 10RAUOD -8L/9Z/L (e8e (8¢ ¥d) sBuime.q [emdesuo)
‘BL/SL/G UBnoIyl pusixs pue (B'Z$ | -Md 'BNS Hew(ep) / BUBHOD 1B sjuswaaoiduw)| L5081L0Z Od Wy Xepy *au| ‘alo) Heuw|epn euelio)
PPY :P3pusWwy }OBNUOD — GL/GL/L | GNH NSUBJ] Wusjul ay} apinosd (M JUBYNSUOD | Ruog uepum | 6LISL/S gLIoLy 081°vES 'R B0JUOW aRY
panoiddy |)eq ajeq aweN

sjuaWWon

papiAoid Sa2IAIRS

032

pu3z

039 Aq j08foid panoidde jsaje| sejeaipui sjybiybiy mojjak

uels

junowy

Jopuap

uondioasaq




SanNp Lo :mcmvs__ﬁ juswebeuey
pUB OOD WUSIU| BY} 1SISSY — BLOZ “Roueoen QOO Bulllly UM SISISSe pue 00D — Ined) o1 olkie e aTh
13goja0 “lopusA sy Uim JoBnUOD | wusiul sy Ag suonesado 1y Jo ybisianc 9028102 Od Wy Xep salsnpu| IU3g S1VD 031 J0SIAPY
Mau B U0 Buplom si S1vD — 6L/LIE | Jo} sedlnas [euoissajoid sapinoid JUBNNSUCD | nuon ushpum 61L/82/Z gL/zzioL 000°05$ aby maN suopesadQ Jojuag

“SISEq papaau
SE UB U0 ‘QyD pue Jabeuel JusaWaINI0Iid Bupnsuon
"SUONOUNY JuaWaIN0ld | 8yl AQ paubisse Se SYSE) JUsWalnoold JSYio juawainoold

paziewads JOUI0 puUB  BOUBJSISSE | PUB ‘SSDIAISS ||BD-UO, UIM Bupuom A|leoyoads ] Z3pueuIaly jugjnsuo)

et : ’ o w Ui ' ; Z018L0Z Od Wy xepy
juswainooid Bunnsuod — L0z 1dag | ‘seoimuss Juswaindold sapiaold JUB)NSUOY JJU0D UBPHM 6L/6/6 gLi0Li6 000°05% Agyey juauwiaindold

"PINId ISNEUXT [2S210 PUE 10 (P
auigIn] DINBIPAH 1O} pIg 1S9MO| SEM 1sNeyxa
[en4 zanBiy -asealn) [98UM B PIN|L [esalp
uoISSIWSURL| ‘JI0 JOIOW ‘IO Jeso) - IIBAUOD U3E] ‘li0 auIgIny
10} PIq 1S8MO| B} Sem T TSB0D UNg — 104 000°05$ 21neIpAy)
sjonpold pajeiRy 10 o Asaliep pue 10 junowe 079°9¢3%
aseyaund ay) oy sienddns ejeiedes pleog mojaq RERE]
Z 01 pieme pig mau parosdde "5Z80JlJUE PUE |I0 JOjow BJe Sway| z asayy | S Ploysalul FEaT]
pieog —LL/LLL Auoyine ploysaiyp 610Z 422k aU) 10} 0000, Alejewixoidde | S @nodde
03D 3y} UM BJB PUB GL/LE/ZL NIY) 18 pajewnse si soud se ‘|eacidde Joj pieog o) oraige
6L/L/L 1o pousd sy} loj Jeak auo Joj | 0B M asay ‘shep og 1xau ayp uiym payolos | S 03D S1VD
pamBuss aq |IM SIOBIUOD asay| “|and aq |IM g1] MaU Y "PIg Bq [|IM 'SaSEB.IOU| :Emw\_mw__rm‘,m (ose8Ib
zanbiy woyy sjonpoud 10§ 029°984 pue aoud JayBbiy o} anp ‘pamausi Jou SWa)| Simauss [gaym pue
I1se0D ung woy syonpoid 10) §90°LLS 12k auo piny "suex
0} 1500 |enuue pajoaloid ayy Buuamo) "8SE810Ul 10} SUONBIND[ED |dd | + sey 1oenuo) oNayuAs aouBUBJUIBI
Agasayy ‘sbesn pajedpnue |euibuo apiroId 0] SPaBU JOPUSA "[BMBUSI U} JO B ‘BLILE/ZL ‘1o 1ean)) S}oNpo.d paieley
8U} UBU) $SB| Yonw 8ie /10Z JAD 10} | 1B |dd 3U) U Paseq JUSWISNIPE 80ud "ZZ/aL/L | NI L1240 S90°Z1%
$1oNpold pajeley |10 ay) Joj abesn sy yBnouy) Jo spouad Jeak (1) suo anissedans paacidde ISeon g1| sa|ddng pue
1BU} pauluLIs}ap Usaq sey | — LLISLZL () 1noj 0} dn e|qe|ieAe suopdo [emausy pJeog 6LILERZL BL/LIL ung [eusiep o)
‘Buneaw
pJjeog Jadoid 8y e psjusseid
SJUBLILIOY | SOION papirocid paroiddy ajeq ajeq Jury awen adA] :o_un__._,o_mmn_
1oNpo.d [SadIAIeg pieog pu3g uels Jopuap JHuos CRITNETS

Syjuow € 0} | UIY}IM uolY pieog Buipued sjoelfoid = anjg

_ Mmou |eaosddy pieog spasu [ Waj| UOIDY = MO A

6102 ‘61 UdJel

pieog S1V9 10} Buisiq juswiainooid S1VD




FEBRUARY 2018

Number |[Route Name RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC 3,007 $ 1,094.29
10 Scenic Hwy / Southern University 7,887] % 3,098.80
11 Northside Circulator 4,189| $ 2,355.36
12 Government St / Jefferson Hwy 9,087|$ 2,992.71
14  |Thomas Delpit Dr 4323|$% 1,682.58
16 Blount Rd (began service 02/24/2019) 482 $ 17.00
16  |Capitol Park Trolley 7i$ -
17 Perkins Rd 10,919| $ 4,463.33
18 Tigerland / Cortana Mall 7,295/ $ 3,415.99
20 North Acadian Thwy 10,700/ $ 4,921.18
21 Fairfields Ave 6,252| $ 2,829.93
22 Winbourne Ave 7,002/ $ 3,375.58
23 Foster Dr 6,199| $ 2,908.84
41 Plank Rd 21,206/ $ 9,858.78
44  |Florida Blvd 32,373/ $ 11,885.66
46 Gardere/OLOL/L'auberge {ended service 02/23/19) 5,268/ $ 3,117.34
46 Cortana / Gardere / L'auberge (began service 02/24/2019) 0| $ -
47 {Highland Rd / LSU 24,198/ § 8,466.73
50 Glen Qaks / Greendale (ended service 02/23/2019 ) 2,063| $ 1,382.57
52 Baker Circulator (ended service 02/23/2019) 1,288| $ 1,152.83
54  |Airline Hwy North / Southern University 12,078/ $ 5,990.33
55 East Florida / BREC (ended service 02/23/2019) 2,492/ $ 1,790.47
56 |Mall to Mall via Drusilla (ended service 02/23/2019) 4,495/ $ 2,038.68
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 13,260/ $ 7,534.89
58 Coursey Blvd / O'Neal Ln 4,669/ $ 2,300.79
59 |East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln 4,880/ $ 2,017.96
60 |[Medical Circulator 745} %  225.98
70 CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 4,105| $ 1,755.93
72 Florida Blvd Limited Stops 5,564/ $ 1,623.97

103  |Airport Express (ended service 02/23/2019) 110| $ 72.97
80 Southern University Shuttle 5,020| $ -
Total 221,163] $ 94,371.47




:mdvmfﬁea _vamFN LV LIE'Y6 a_mmtrwm SHIDNIASSVY TVLOL _

- $ |vos'c - $ tozo's smNUs MIssaAln wswgnesg| 0@
LL'ES $ %9 167CL % {OLlL (6102/£2/20 oointos papus) ssaidxg pHodiry j umoumog| €01
$6°€9/°1L $ |z69'c 1B'€TY') $ {+95's sdo}g paywi] PA|g epHOld| Z.
96'¥52'e $ |oue'y C6'GGL'L $ [sol'y Jaxeq f AyIsioAlIN WIBYINOG J [BUlULID) S1VD| 0L
06°16¢ $ |i¥8 86°62C $ oL ioje[nadl) [ealpsiN| 09
28'5¥e'e $ |5BG'e 96°£10'¢ $ |088'y lausysQ f U [eaN,O / palg epLiold 3SET| 8§
21°090°¢ $ |beC's 62°008'C $ |699'¥ 19Usy20 f U7 [eAN,O { PAIG A9SIN0D|  BS
0/°6¥6'g § [prP'El 89°¥ES'. $ |09Z'c) pY sBuudg [[amudaln [ pAld 382104 poomidyg| /6
88°€L0C ¢ [2z6'e 89°'8¢0'2 3 |s6V'P (6L02Z/£2/20 991as98 papua) U BjISNIQ BIA HEJN O} IEW| 98
£6'8/6°L $ 8192 ¥ 06L' L $ 126¥'2 (6102/67/20 D21a43s popud} H3Hg [ BPMOl] Ised| &5
08'¥8.'% $ (18Z'8 £€°066'G $ |B/0'CL Hodily ona f APSIBAIUN WSYINOS [ YUON AMH aUIIY|  ¥§
29°800°1L $ (1821 €826 ¢ (88Tl (61L0Z/£Z/20 22iA4aS papus) 1oje|nall 1oveg| 2§
Z6'889 $ 1662°L 16°288°L ¢ [eo0'2 (6L02Z/£2/20 oo1A098 papuo) 101RINDIID SlepUSaIs) | SYeQ UaD] 08
21°G5F'GL % |os9'0g £/°09p'8 $ [861'¥E NS/ by pueubll| ¥

- $lo - 3|0 (6L02/p2/20 93in40s ueBaq} abiagne, [ aleples  euelion| oy
0L°09¥'€ $ |¥BLY relLL'e $ 892G {6L/62/20 eoirtes papus) oBlagne, /1070 | 2iopieD
S PET'GL $ |v0L'ee oo9'gg8’LlL  § [e/€2E palg epuold| TP
05°€82'L L $ |¢/0'¢e 81°852'6 $ (90212 P yueld| Iy
Z5°862'C % [soF'e ¥9806'2 $ |661'9 g Jesed| €7
0£'698'c $ |£96'G 86°6/8'E $ 12002 SAY awinoquim| 22
86112 $ |119'% £6'628'2 $ 12gz'9 SAY sp|alpled| 1z
£G'GBG'G $ [Z2e's 8l 126y % {002'0) Amy] ueipesy yuoN| 02
10°96%E $ |ovs's 66°GLY'E $ |562°L frew euepon f puepebil| gl
£6¢86'G $ 1910z £ eov'y $ 61601 py supled| 21

- s lo - $ |2 Aaf[olL yied jopdes| 9|

- 310 00° /L $ |Z8¥ (6L0Z/p2/20 2a1rias ueBaqg) JIOMISALD) | Py JUNO|g| S|
£5°'9¥2'C $ |PS5'e 857891 $ |E2E'Y 1S eAes00Y fUQ Bdjag sewoyl| i
TR A 4 $ |264'01 11°266°C $ 1/80'6 AmH uoslagar 118 JuswuIsAn0n| Zi
G062 $ |¥90'p 9£'GGE'T $ 168L'Y S[ILAPUEBOIS [ BAY PUZ/ [ 10)[N0ID BPISYMON | 1)
95'625°C $ |0c8'0 08°'860°¢ $ /882 Apssoniuf uiegnog f Amy alusag| 0}
£6ZLLT $ |212'S 62 ¥60°1 $ |200°€ 9248 1oAY Buno) shn| g

INNAATYH dIHSYIAa INNIATY dIHSY3a1Y s3alnoy! #

810z 6102

AdvYNYddd




L'bzg [00€98'6S  |1G°0LZ'LLE (0618 LS [Seear Lve'se 166181 l23e)
00°0% 0zo's BIIAIBS ON| 201M8S ON| adtalas aal4] a2IA19s ON| 9214188 ON|0Z0'S amnug Aisiaalun wsymog 0g
FANALS oLL G698 04764 7409% 0l Bl 68 (6L02/82/20 soirses papus) ssaadxg Hodily fumojumoq| €01
I6°€Z9'Le  |pous's adiases oN| ad1nes oN| 2629 LS 92IAl9S ON| 92IAI8S ON|$95°G sdoig pajwi pAlg Bplold zL
€6°554°1$  [SOL'Y 518ELS FNAA 98 ¥y 1% 9/¢ 0et 662 Jayeg / Apsiaaiun WsUyInog fjeuluua] sIvay| 04
26°SZZ$ S¥l 8¥ 1% 09°9L% 08 1L0Z$ 44 £ 859 dojeinadiy [edlpely| 09
96°110°2% 088"V ZT 181% 01003 rOV¥Zs 1S 86%F £89 669'¢ J3USYIQO f UT |2IN,0 f PAIG BPLIO|4 ISBT| 65
62002 |699°F 80IAlas ON|00'€Z2S 641023 871A19S ON|EEF geT'y 18UsSyoQ / Ut [eeN,0 / PAIg Aesinod|  g§
68'peg’ts |oez'el  |/9°cpSs 8GTFLS ¥y 8z 9% 6L1'L 28Tl €180l py sbupndg jlomusalc f palg 150104 poomidys| 1§
89°8€0°Z% [SBY'V S1L'041% 18°¥£Z% TLee9'14 s 80/ Goz'e (6L0Z/£2/20 991A48S papua) U BIIISNIG BIA [[eIN O3 JIeI| 95
Ir06L°1LS  |Z6¥°2 292IMI8S ON|GHGLES Z8viv1S 991013s ON|915 8.6} {6L0z/c2/20 BoIAsRS popud) DIMUY [ epHold Jseq| 56
££°066's% [820°7) {T¥60FS 12°6LiS 0z 198V 518 §52°1 00°0) Hodiry onoW ; AHSISAIUN WBYINOS [ YUON AmH auldy|  +§
£8ZSL'LS  |88Z'L 50°06% 2271618 621169 Gl 28l 586 (6L0Z/5Z/z0 @0indas papua) aoleinaay oxeg| 29
16°288°L%  [£90°Z /6718% 0£'6G1$ 0S°19L°1% 2oL B2 $99°L (610Z/€2/20 99140 POpUB) 10JEINDIID B|EPURSID [ SO UBID|  0F
£2°99%'8% [B6L'FT  |OO'CHFOS Z1'GB6S 19°822°9% 8le'z BI9'C T0e'6L ns1/py pusluBiH|  I¥
00°0$ 0 VIN VIN VN VIN ¥iIN ¥IN (6L02/72/20 oointos uebog) aBlagne, | [ 8IopleD | BUBHOD| B
veZLL'ed  |gez's 9G°L¥Z$ SErrrS eV LEVTS vy 055 LLZ'Y (61/€2/20 9ointos popud) ebiagne, /1070 / 21epien|  oF
99'588°LL$ (£28°2¢ |¥602Z8% ¥ L0911 |0ETLGYAS G/8C 9gs'e Z99's¢e PAlg EPLIOID| PP
e/'858'6% (90Z°lz  |Lopess Y8ZLLLS |€o'LSL'as ove’L LGE'T B0Z°LL pYueld| Ly
¥8'806°¢3 |(661'9 117281% oyrzLes 29°¢95°28 08¢ Fdsl4 16¢°G dgaeysod| ¢z
85°'9.£'c$ |200'L Z0'052% 09°Z05% 96'222'C$ €15 126 ZL8'G BAY sUINOqUIM|  ZZ
£6'629'Z% |Z92'9 T6'95¢% 99693 G2 p012S £65 182 8/8'F SAY spisiyred] LZ
81'126'v$ (0020} |/z'9gC% £9°/65% 82°580'%% 189 £50'1 995'8 Amu) uelpesy poN|  0Z
66°9LF'E |96Z'L 002828 £8°987% 91269'7$ 859 180°L ovs's Ilel euepo) f puelebly| gl
£EEOF'PS 16L6'0L [TOZBLS L2 0578 ¥0'918'cS 209 515 96¢'6 pY sunlad|  LL
oo.ow 2z BIIAIDS ON| ©JIAISS ON| 991AI9S 2al]| SDIIAISS ON SDAIBS ON |/ >w=0._._. Hied _OH_QNU 9]
00°21LS 28r 00°0% VN 00'LL% ¥S ¥IN ey (6L0Z/pZ/20 9910405 uebaq) UHomIsain j py junolg| si
85°Z89°L$ |eZLY SoveLs Zvr'aezs LS'6ZE LS 662 9% 166'¢ 1S Jleaeso0y [ g Ndieg sewoyl]  ¥|
L2Z66°2% [180%6 07'GG61$ £R'06Z% 29°085°2% 205 oeg 0622 Amij uosIager /36 JUdWWIBADD | 7]
9¢°'56£Z8  [68L'Y L6'E61S 96'5/2% 6Y GRRLE 592 88% oge'e 9lIIAPUBRODG [ BAY PUZL [ JOJR[NDIID SPISUHUON| LI
08'860'es |z88°2 ZTrrLs G9LOES £6'Z50'TE ¥6E 129 Zi8'9 Ausisaun wisynog f AmH owesg| 01
6Z'760°LS |Z00°C ¥LELS yZ°161% AL gLz 0¥ Zee'e 204g [ Ay Bunoy sng g
INN3ATY  [dwyssapis | Aepung Aepameg Aepiam Aepung Aepames | Aepyaam SN aInoy | Jaquny
’ 210y
V10L 3NNIAIY dIHSYIOY

510Z Advndgad




